ESD-TR-70-124, Vol. I ESD-TR-70-124, Vol. I

MTR-1768, Vol. I

GRASP: A PL/I COMPATIBLE GRAPHICS SUBROUTINE PACKAGE FOR THE IBM 2260 DISPLAY STATION (LOCAL ATTACHMENT)

VOLUME I - INTRODUCTION AND USER'S MANUAL

R. H. Bullen, Jr.

MAY 1970

Prepared for

DIRECTORATE OF SYSTEMS DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT ELECTRONIC SYSTEMS DIVISION AIR FORCE SYSTEMS COMMAND UNITED STATES AIR FORCE L. G. Hanscom Field, Bedford, Massachusetts

ESD RECORD COPY

RETURN TO SCIENTIFIC & TECHNICAL INFORMATION DIVISION (55TD REPUISING 1.11)



Project 512A Prepared by THE MITRE CORPORATION Bedford, Massachusetts Contract F19(628)-68-C-0365

AD706133

This document has been approved for public release and sole; its distribution is unlimited. When U.S. Government drawings, specifications, or other data are used for any purpose other than a definitely related government procurement operation, the government thereby incurs no responsibility nor any obligation whatsoever; and the fact that the government may have formulated, furnished, or in any way supplied the soid drowings, specifications, ar other data is not to be regarded by implication or otherwise, os in any monner licensing the holder or any other person or corporation, or conveying any rights or permissian to manufocture, use, or sell any patented invention that may in any way be related thereta.

Do not return this copy. Retain or destroy.

ESD-TR- 70-124, Vol. I

MTR-1768, Vol. I

GRASP: A PL/I COMPATIBLE GRAPHICS SUBROUTINE PACKAGE FOR THE IBM 2260 DISPLAY STATION (LOCAL ATTACHMENT)

VOLUME I - INTRODUCTION AND USER'S MANUAL

R. H. Bullen, Jr.

MAY 1970

Prepared for

DIRECTORATE OF SYSTEMS DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT ELECTRONIC SYSTEMS DIVISION AIR FORCE SYSTEMS COMMAND UNITED STATES AIR FORCE L. G. Hanscom Field, Bedford, Massachusetts



Project 512A Prepared by THE MITRE CORPORATION Bedford, Massachusetts Contract F19(628)-68-C-0365

This document has been approved far public release and sale; its distribution is unlimited.

FOREWORD

This report was prepared by The MITRE Corporation, Bedford, Massachusetts under Contract No. F19(628)-68-C-0365, MITRE Project 512A. Volume I gives an overview of the IBM 2260 Display Station and an introduction to the PL/I compatible routines which provide programming support for the IBM 2260 in local attachment. Volume II provides detailed program specifications.

REVIEW AND APPROVAL

This technical report has been reviewed and is approved.

CHARLES E. MCKUSICK, Lt Colonel, USAF Chief, Systems Analysis Division Directorate of Systems Design and Development

ABSTRACT

GRASP is a set cf PL/I compatible subroutines which provide programming support for the IBM 2260 Display Station in local attachment; i.e., the attachment of a 2260 directly to a System/ 360 CPU channel via the IBM 2848 Display Control. The subroutines are coded in OS/360 Assembler Language and are reentrant. They permit the PL/I programmer to manipulate the 2260 as an I/O device in the same manner available to the Assembler Language programmer using the Graphics Access Method under OS/360 (with restrictions as noted in the Introduction to Volume I of this document). All errors, except those which normally result in OS/360 abnormal ends (ABENDs), are returned to the user via subroutine parameters. GRASP is designed to operate under the MFT configuration of OS/360.

Volume I of this document gives an overview of the 2260 and an introduction to the GRASP routines. Volume II gives detailed program specifications.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

LIST OF	ILLUS TRATIONS		vi
SECTION	I	INTRODUCTION	1
SECTION	II	THE 2260 ENVIRONMENT	3
		GENERAL DESCRIPTION	3
		SPECIAL FEATURES	3
		Keyboard	3
		Line Addressing	6
		Non-Destructive Cursor	6
		Data Entry	6
		Printer	7
SECTION	III	GRASP/2260 USER'S MANUAL	8
		INTRODUCTION	8
		CONTROL BLOCKS	10
		Data Control Block (DCB)	10
		Graphics Attention Control Block	
		(GACB)	10
		Data Event Control Block (DECB)	10
		INPUT OPERATIONS	11
		Buffer Input	11
		Manual Input	11
		Short Manual Input	12
		OUTPUT OPERATIONS	13
		Screen Erase	13
		Buffer Output	13
		Line Addressed Output	13
		ATTENTION HANDLING	14
		Initialization	14
		Attention Inquiry	14
		Termination	15
		SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS	16
		The Number of Channel Programs	
		(NCP) Parameter	16
		Writing the START Symbol	17
		Using Line Addressed Output	18
		SAMPLE GRASP APPLICATION	20

LIST OF REFERENCES

LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS

Figure Number

1	2260/2848 Configurations	4
2	Special and Control Symbols	5
3	GRASP Routines	9
4	A Line-Addressed Output Example	19
5	Sample GRASP Application: Source Code	21
6	GRASP Standard Include Set	22
7	Sample GRASP Application: Listing	23

SECTION I

INTRODUCTION

The IBM 2260 Display Station is a small character-oriented display which may be attached to an IBM System/360 computer via transmission lines to an IBM 2701 Data Adapter Unit (remote attachment) or directly to a CPU channel via the IBM 2848 Display Control Unit (local attachment). Programming support for the former mode of attachment is provided to Assembler Language programmers under OS/360 via the Basic or Queued Telecommunications Access Methods (BTAM and QTAM). Programming support for the latter mode, also available only to Assembler Language programmers, is provided by the Graphics Access Method (GAM). At the time of this writing IBM does not support either mode of attachment in any of its available higher level languages, although QTAM support has been announced for PL/I Version 5, to be released in early 1970.

For some time, two 2260's in local attachment (and therefore supported by GAM) were available at MITRE, although until early 1969 there was much interest but little use. With the advent of IBM's Conversational Programming System (CPS) and interest in the 2260's by the MITRE Management Information System (MIS) and Military Airlift Command (MAC) projects, use of the 2260's increased. A need was immediately felt for an interface to GAM for the PL/I Language, since both the MIS and MAC projects were using that language.

A preliminary investigation of available software was undertaken by the MIS project and revealed that there was no interface package available at the time which reflected, on the one hand, the inherent simplicity of the GAM support and the 2260 itself and which, on the other hand, did not inhibit the higher level language programmer from taking full advantage of the capabilities available to the Assembler Language programmer using CAM. In addition, since the PL/I Language already provided certain basic system programming capabilities, foremost among these being the capability of producing reentrant programs, it was felt that the interface package should be reentrant. This would guarantee in addition that the package could be transferred to a computing system using MVT, without degrading that system's capabilities and without reprogramming. A suitable interface package not being found, it was decided to build such a package at MITRE; that package is GRASP. The version of GRASP documented in this paper does not provide the full capability of GAM programming support. It supports:

- (1) I/O operations addressing a 2260;
- (2) the keyboard and line addressing features of the 2848; and
- (3) attention handling in a background-type user program via the "basic" method (see reference 2).

GRASP does not support:

- (1) user written asynchronous attention processing programs; and
- (2) the "express" method of attention handling (see reference 2).

In addition, although GRASP was written to support any valid 2848/ 2260 combination, it has only been tested with a 2848 Model 3 with two attached 2260 Model 1 Display Stations. The omission of the express attention handling capability is not serious since it does not appear to be as useful as the basic method, and if it were required, it could be provided with a minimum of effort. However, the omission of support for user written asynchronous attention processing programs is significant. Considerable work was done to determine if it would be possible to implement a PL/I programmer-defined condition which would be raised whenever an attention occurred. The PL/I programmer would then be able to use the full capabilities of PL/I for enabling and disabling condition handling specifications. But it was found that the manner in which asynchronous exit routines are activated by the Operating System is not compatible with the PL/I implementation of condition on-units. One method of interfacing the Operating System and PL/I was identified, but it required the addition of a special SVC routine to the system library. This was felt to be an unsatisfactory approach to the problem, and the attempt to implement this capability was abandoned.

This paper is divided into two volumes. The first gives a brief introduction to the 2260, and describes GRASP and its use. The second gives detailed specifications of the GRASP routines. The reader is assumed to be familiar with the PL/I Language.

SECTION II

THE 2260 ENVIRONMENT

GENERAL DESCRIPTION

This section presents a subset of information from selected documents in the Bibliography. Readers desiring more information should consult the appropriate document.

The 2260 is a small character-oriented display capable of displaying either 6 or 12 lines of either 40 or 80 characters each, depending on the 2260/2848 configuration (see Figure 1). The range of characters includes:

26 alphabetic characters;

10 numeric characters;

25 special symbols (including the space and new line symbols); and

3 control symbols (cursor, check and start symbols).

Graphics associated with the special and control symbols are shown in Figure 2. Bit patterns for all symbols displayable on a 2260 Display Station are shown in Reference 3. Operating instructions for the 2260 Display Station can be found in Reference 1.

SPECIAL FEATURES

Special features of 2848/2260 configuration of interest to the user of GRASP include the keyboard, line addressing, non-destructive cursor, data entry, and 1053 Printer options. Other special features are available and are described in Reference 3.

Keyboard

If the selected 2260 is not equipped with the keyboard feature, the parts of the GRASP package dealing with attention handling and input operations must not be used. Such a 2260 is only an output device.

Characters per Display	0%		480	960	240	480
Characters per Line	07	D t	40	80	40	40
Lines per Display	J	þ	12	12	9	12
Maximum No. of Devices	27.	ţ	16	8	24	16
2260 Model	c	۷	7	1	7	7
2848 Model	-	4	2	3	21 ⁽¹⁾	22 ⁽¹⁾

Figure 1. 2260/2848 Configurations⁽²⁾

(1) Data entry configurations; see 'Special Features".

(2) As of this writing, MITRE's configuration at the Bedford 360/50 computer center includes a 2848 Model 3 and four 2260 Model 1's with the keyboard, line addressing, and non-destructive cursor features.



Figure 2. Special and Control Symbols

The CPU is interrupted via the ENTER key on the keyboard attached to a 2260, causing the control program to store information related to the attention in an attention queue. Via the attention handling capabilities of GRASP, the programmer may inspect the attention queue and service the device.

Line Addressing

This feature permits the programmer to specify, via a control character transmitted to the 2260 as the first byte of data to be written, that display is to begin at column 1 of a particular line of the screen. This feature also permits a very limited cursor positioning capability: if only the control character is transmitted, the cursor is positioned to column 1 of the indicated display line.

Non-Destructive Cursor

The standard destructive cursor is a symbol, indistinguishable from the EOM symbol, which indicates the display position to be occupied by the next character key depressed or character displayed. It occupies a display position and overwrites display positions as it advances. The non-destructive cursor performs the same function as the destructive cursor, but is a different graphic and does not occupy a display position; it is displayed to the left of and slightly below the next character position to be filled when data is transmitted or when a character key is depressed.

Data Entry

After the completion of a read operation from a 2260, the keyboard of the selected 2260 is mechanically unlocked and operator entry may resume. The data entry models of the 2848 Display Control permit the bypassing of this operation, thereby enabling program verification and response to operator input prior to the entry of another message. This is supported in GRASP by the "lock" (L) code in the mode arguments to the read, write, and erase routines. If the 2848 controlling the selected 2260 is not a data entry model, these codes must not be used. The data entry models of the 2848 have several other features, including a keypunch-type keyboard layout (rather than a typewriter layout), which are described in Reference 3.

Printer

A 2848/2260 configuration can be equipped with a slave 1053 printer. This is a low speed (14 characters per second) modified SELECTRIC printer and may either be activated by the operator via the PRINT key on the 2260 or be treated as an output device by the computer program. Programming considerations for the 1053 printer are given in References 2 and 3.

SECTION III

GRASP/2260 USER'S MANUAL

INTRODUCTION

GRASP is a set of subroutines and functions which provide the PL/I programmer programming support for the 2260 Display Station. The subroutines available can be broken down into the following categories:

- General I/O Support this group includes subroutines which allocate and format graphics control blocks, and perform the open and close functions.
- Specific I/O Routines this group includes routines which initiate read, write, and erase operations to a 2260, and which wait for the completion of I/O operations.
- Attention Handling this group includes subroutines which allocate and build attention environment control blocks, and which support the inspection of the Operating System attention queue.
- Support Functions this group includes a set of functions which, among other things, permit the PL/I programmer to access information in graphics control blocks.

Figure 3 lists the GRASP routines under the above headings and gives a brief definition of each.

This section describes the use and features of the GRASP routines. Control blocks of interest to the GRASP user are described as background information. The input and output routines are then described, followed by a discussion of attention processing. Several special programming considerations are presented and a final section describes a sample GRASP application.

General I/O Support

GOPEN	- Define and open a graphics data control block.
GCLOSE	- Close a graphics data control block.
Specific I/O	Routines
GREAD	- Initiate a read from a 2260.
GWRITE	- Initiate a write to a 2260.
GERASE	- Initiate an erase of a 2260.
GWATT	- Wait for the completion of an I/O operation.

Attention Handling

GAAP	- Activate attention processing.
GDAP	- Deactivate attention processing.
GAQ	- Attention inquiry.

Support Functions

GNUNITS	- Number of units in a unit group.
GUNIT	- Unit in the unit group causing an attention.
GLINENO	- Line number conversion.
GNCP	- Number of channel programs value.

Figure 3. GRASP Routines

CONTROL BLOCKS

The GRASP user is required to be familiar with three OS/360 I/O control blocks: the Data Control Block, the Graphics Attention Control Block, and the Data Event Control Block. This section describes these control blocks and their use by GRASP routines.

The user is not expected to know the format of these control blocks. Each control block is automatically generated by an appropriate GRASP routine and its address is returned to the user as a PL/I POINTER variable. This variable is then passed as an argument to other GRASP routines which require access to the particular control block.

Data Control Block (DCB)

The DCB is the primary link between the external device and other I/O control blocks. It is generated by the open process by a call to the GOPEN routine, is specified in calls to GREAD, GWRITE, and GERASE to initiate I/O operations, and is referenced in the call to GCLOSE to perform the close process. It is also used as an argument to the GAAP routine (Activate Attention Processing) to initiate attention handling operations (see below).

Graphics Attention Control Block (GACB)

A GACB is generated for each DCB for which attentions are to be processed. The GACB is generated by the GAAP subroutine, is specified as an argument to the GAQ (Attention Inquiry) routine to inspect the attention queue, and is input to the GDAP (Deactivate Attention Processing) routine to terminate the processing of attentions for a specific DCB. Since attention processing is always DCB-specific, the pointer to the DCB must be specified as an argument to the GAAP routine. Thereafter, only the GACB need be specified since it contains an internal pointer to the DCB with which it is associated.

Data Event Control Block (DECB)

The DECB is exactly equivalent in function to a PL/I EVENT variable. A unique DECB is generated each time a call is made to GREAD, GWRITE, or GERASE to initiate an I/O operation, and its address is returned as a PL/I POINTER variable. This pointer may then be specified as an argument to the GWAIT routine to wait for completion of the associated I/O operation.

INPUT OPERATIONS

Three types of input operations are provided to the user of GRASP: buffer input, manual input, and short manual input. All three types are implemented by options of the GREAD routine.

Buffer Input

If 'B' is coded as the read-mode argument to the GREAD routine*, the entire contents of the buffer of the selected 2260 Display Station is transferred to memory. After transfer, the screen is erased. All characters, including special characters, are transferred.

Manual Input

I

If 'M' is coded as the read-mode argument to the GREAD routine, the characters on the screen between the START symbol (\triangleright) and the EOM symbol (\neg) are transferred to memory. The START symbol is deleted from the screen and the cursor is placed immediately to the right of the position originally occupied by the START symbol.

The new line symbol (\checkmark) has a special use with manual input read operations. When a new line symbol is encountered between the START and EOM symbols during the read operation, characters on the same line as and to the right of the new line symbol are skipped and data transfer begins again with the first character on the next line. The new line symbol is transferred as a data character.

The behavior of the manual input read operation on encountering a new line symbol can be used to advantage when more than one distinct piece of information is to be transferred in a single read operation. Consider an example. The program initially displays command information on the right of the screen and places the cursor at column 1 of the first line:

> JOB NAME PROJECT NO. DEPT.

* Detailed definitions of the arguments to GRASP routines are given in Volume II of this document.

The display operator enters the START symbol and the "job name" and depresses the new line key. This causes the cursor to move to column 1 of the second line:

TES T	JOB NAME
	PROJECT NO.
•	DEPT.

The operator continues by typing the other required information and depresses the ENTER key when the message is complete:

TEST 4	JOB NAME
512A	PROJECT NO
D73	DEPT.

When the program issues a manual input read operation, the string transferred is:

'TEST 🖌 512A 🖌 D73'.

Transfer of input data to the string variable specified in the call to GREAD occurs asynchronously to the execution of the user's program. In addition, the current length of this string variable, which has the VARYING attribute, is not set until a GWAIT is issued for the read operation. For these reasons, it is advisable not to make reference to the string variable until after the operation is complete; i.e., after a call has been made to GWAIT.

Short Manual Input

At the completion of a manual input operation, the START symbol is deleted from the screen and the cursor is placed to the left of the position originally occupied by the START symbol. Short manual input, identical to manual input in all other respects, does not delete the START symbol from the screen and therefore results in a somewhat faster read operation.

OUTPUT OPERATIONS

Three types of output operations are provided by GRASP: screen erase, buffer output, and line addressed output. The screen erase operation is provided by the GERASE routine. The remaining two write operations are performed by the GWRITE routine.

Screen Erase

Two methods are available for erasing the screen of a 2260. The first method, used when a write operation will not immediately follow the erase, is provided by the GERASE routine. The second method is the pre-write erase option of the GWRITE routine. In this case, the screen is erased immediately prior to the write operation specified by the call to GWRITE.

Buffer Output

By coding 'B' or 'EB' (if a pre-write erase is desired) as the write-mode argument to the GWRITE routine, the programmer may specify that the specified string argument is to replace the contents of the buffer of the selected 2260 Display Station. If this mode is used, the length of the string to be displayed must be exactly equal to the size of the buffer for the selected 2260 Display Station (either 240, 480 or 960 characters, depending upon the 2848 model in use).

The first character of the string to be displayed appears in column 1 of the first display line, and subsequent characters are displayed adjacent and to the right with spillover to subsequent display lines.

Line Addressed Output

When a 2848/2260 combination is equipped with the line addressing feature, the programmer may specify that a message is to be displayed on a particular line of the selected 2260 Display Station. This type of write operation is specified by coding 'A' or 'EA' (if a pre-write erase is desired) as the write-mode argument of the GWRITF routine.

In this mode of operation, the first byte of data is interpreted as a control character, indicating the display line to which the string will be written. This character must be included in the length of the string, but is not displayed. Display of the string begins at column 1 of the addressed line and spills over to subsequent lines (with wrap around from the last line to the first line) if the string is longer than one display line. Characters on the screen beyond the last character of the displayed string are not affected by a line addressed write operation. A special function, called GLINENO, is provided as a part of GRASP to aid the user of line addressed output. The user specifies the desired line number as a FIXED BIN (31) integer, and codes the following expression as the string argument to the GWRITE routine:

GLINENO(line number) string

where "string" is the string to be displayed. The returned value of the GLINENO function has the attribute CHAR(1). The dummy argument generated by PL/I for the string expression above automatically accounts for the addition of the control character to the string to be displayed.

ATTENTION HANDLING

Attention handling support is provided in GRASP by the GAAP, GAQ and GDAP routines. This section describes these routines and their use.

Initialization

To initiate attention processing the user calls the GAAP routine specifying the DCB for which attentions are to be accepted. GAAP generates a GACB, notifies the control program that attentions for that DCB/GACB combination are to be honored, and returns the GACB address to the user. Any attentions occurring after the call to GAAP are queued by the control program until the user calls GAQ to inspect the queue.

Attention Inquiry

Whenever the user wishes to inspect the attention queue, he calls the GAQ routine, passing as an argument the GACB associated with the DCB for which attentions are desired. He also specifies, via an argument, the mode of the query:

- (1) Wait (W) or Relinquish (R) mode*;
- (2) Conditional (C) mode; and
- (3) Clear (X) mode.
- * Wait and Relinquish modes are equivalent in this implementation of GRASP. They are included for compatibility with possible future extensions of GRASP.

In W-mode or R-mode, the user is placed in a wait state until the desired attention occurs. In C-mode, the user requests that a BIT(1) variable specified as an argument be set to 'l'B or ' \emptyset 'B to indicate whether or not the desired attention is present. If Xmode is specified, the attention queue is cleared; any attentions on the queue are lost.

The user selects a desired attention by specifying as an argument the unit number of the 2260 Display Station for which attentions are expected. This number, meaningless for X-mode, may be an integer greater than or equal to 1 to select an attention from a particular 2260 or may be zero to indicate that attentions are to be accepted from any 2260 defined by the DCB associated with the specified GACB.

On return from an R-mode or W-mode call to GAQ, the desired attention is present and a GREAD may be issued to the unit causing the attention. Similarly, on return from a C-mode call, if the BIT(1) variable has been set to '1'B the attention is present and a read may be issued.

If for C-mode, R-mode, or W-mode, a non-zero unit number was specified, the user knows which unit caused the attention, and a read may be issued to that particular unit by specifying the same unit number in the call to GREAD. If, however, zero was specified as the unit number to indicate that attentions are to be accepted from any device, the user needs to know which of the devices defined by the GACB/DCB combination caused the attention. For this purpose, a GRASP routine, called GUNIT, is provided. On return from GAQ, and in the presence of an attention, the function returns the unit number of the unit causing that attention.

Termination

To terminate the processing of attentions, the GRASP user calls the GDAP routine. This program notifies the control program that queueing of attention information for the DCB associated with the specified GACB should cease; storage occupied by the GACB is freed. Any attentions occurring after the call to GDAP are lost.

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS

The Number of Channel Programs (NCP) Parameter

It is possible, when servicing more than one 2260 using a single Data Control Block (DCB) (and therefore a single Data Definition (DD) statement), to overlap I/O operations on these devices. The NCP parameter of the DCB may be used for this purpose. The function of NCP is to specify to OS/360 the maximum number of channel programs; i.e., I/O operations, which may be outstanding for a given DCB at any time. Outstanding I/O operations are ones which have been initiated (in GRASP by a call to GREAD, GWRITE, or GERASE) for the same DCB without an intervening wait operation (performed in GRASP by calling GWAIT).

The value of NCP is an integer between 1 and some maximum value specified during system generation of the OS/360 version in control, but is never greater than 99. The value of NCP for a particular DCB may be specified by the programmer in his call to GOPEN or may be specified on the DD statement by coding DCB=GNCP=value. If the NCP value is specified in the call to GOPEN, this value overrides any value specified on the DD statement.

In a GRASP application where more than one 2260 is defined by a single DCB, the programmer may set the NCP value for the DCB to a value high enough to permit simultaneous I/O operations to be in effect for all of the 2260's defined by the DCB. By calling the GNUNITS routine prior to opening the DCB, the program determines the number of devices defined on the DD statement for the DCB. The programmer may then set the NCP argument to GOPEN to this value. This allows the GRASP program to exercise a certain measure of control over the external specification of the NCP value, while at the same time not restricting the program to a particular, perhaps too small, value.

The following rules must be followed in making use of the NCP capability for overlapping I/O operations:

 Every overlapped I/O operation must have its own DECB. This is accomplished by using unique identifiers for the first arguments ("decbptr") in overlapped calls to the I/O initiation routines (GREAD, GERASE, and GWRITE). (2) I/O operations must be waited on (by calling GWAIT) in the order in which they were initiated. For example,

> CALL GREAD (DECB1,...); CALL GREAD (DECB2,...); CALL GWAIT (DECB2,...); CALL GWAIT (DECB1,...);

is not correct; the waits must be performed in the opposite order.

Writing the START Symbol

The START and EOM symbols are used to identify the characters in the buffer to be transmitted to memory on a manual input read operation. Both symbols may be entered on the screen by the display operator. It is, however, desirable under certain circumstances for the user program to display the START symbol as part of a command. The program might display:

"ENTER NAME 🕨 "

where "`F" represents the START symbol. The cursor would appear immediately to the right of the START symbol. The operator of the display would then follow by typing his name and depressing the ENTER key. The displaying of the START symbol by the program can result in a significant increase in "throughput", especially when operator responses are short.

Since the START symbol corresponds to the graphic " $\not\in$ ", which is generally not available on print trains, a CHAR(1) string variable, GCENT, the value of which is this symbol, is available to the user of the GRASP standard include set (see "Sample GRASP Application"). If the user wishes to include the START symbol in his displayed string, he simply concatenates the variable GCENT to the string he wants displayed. In the above example, the string argument to the call to GWRITE which resulted in the above message being displayed would have been coded:

'ENTER NAME' GCENT

Using Line Addressed Output

Care must be taken when using line addressed output to "clean up" areas of the screen affected by previous operator messages. Consider the example in section a of Figure 4. The call to GWRITE causes the message

ENTER NAME

to be displayed on line 1 of the display. The cursor is shown to the immediate right of the START symbol to indicate that the first character key to be depressed by the display operator will cause that character to appear adjacent to and to the right of the START symbol.

The display operator then types in his name and depresses the ENTER key causing the EOM symbol to appear. The first line of the Jisplay would now contain:

ENTER NAME 🕨 R. H. BULLEN 💻

When the GREAD subroutine is called, the characters between the START and EOM symbols are transferred to memory and stored in the program variable "NAME" and the display line is automatically modified to contain:

ENTER NAME R. H. BULLEN

A branch is now taken to the statement labelled "LOOP", causing the command to be rewritten, and the display line to appear as:

ENTER NAME 🕨 R. H. BULLEN 🕳

The previous operator input remains on the screen since the command is output using line addressing.

One way of solving this problem is shown in section b of Figure 4. By adding an extra call to GWRITE, the first line of the display is blanked out prior to writing the command. It is necessary to use two separate calls to ensure that the cursor will appear immediately to the right of the START symbol, when the command is displayed. a) LOOP: CALL GWRITE (..., 'A',..., GLINENO(1) || 'ENTER NAME'||GCENT,...);
CALL GREAD (..., 'M',..., NAME,...);
GO TO LOOP:
b) LOOP2: CALL GWRITE (..., GLINENO(1) || (80) ' ',...);
CALL GWRITE (..., GLINENO(1) || 'ENTER NAME '| GCENT,...);
CALL GREAD (..., NAME,...);
GO TO LOOP2;

Figure 4. A Line-Addressed Output Example

SAMPLE GRASP APPLICATION

Figure 5 shows the PL/I source language for a sample GRASP application. In general, the program initializes a display and waits for attentions. When an attention occurs, a read is issued and the string received is printed. When the operator at the display enters "STOP", the program erases the display and terminates.

Several points are worth noting about the program:

- (1) In the compile step, a DD statement defining the include library AAINC is required, if the GRASP standard include set is used. The include set is shown in Figure 6 and contains declarations for the GRASP routines and the definition of the special variable GCENT, the value of which appears as the START symbol when displayed on a 2260.
- (2) A % INCLUDE statement is required to cause the GRASP program declarations to be inserted in the program. The statements which follow the % INCLUDE cause selected declarations to be inserted in the program as source code. The specific declarations are selected by coding the name of the desired subroutine followed by a # sign; for example, GOPEN# is coded to cause the declaration of the GOPEN routine to be inserted in the program. Each subroutine declaration selection must be followed by a semicolon. Figure 7 shows the listing of the PL/I compilation of the sample program, indicating the inclusion of the selected declarations. In addition to the individual declarations, a special symbol GALL# is provided which, when included in the user's program, results in the inclusion of declarations for all GRASP routines.
- (3) The third argument to the GOPEN routine is coded as 'IOE' to indicate that the GREAD, CWRITE, and GERASE routines will be used. The NCP value is set to 1.

SAMPLE_GRASP_APPLICATION

01/02/70 16:02:53 12345678901234567890123456789012345678901234567890123456789012345678901234567890 //DISPLAY JOB ('512A', D73, 10, D082), 'BULLEN RH', CLASS=0 11 EXEC PLILFCLG, PARM.PLIL= "M" //PI1L.DCLS DD DSN=AAINC,DISP=SHR,UNIT=PACK, 11 VOL=(PRIVATE, RETAIN, SER=DP5010) //PL1L.SYSIN DD * DISPLAY : PROC UPTIONS(MAIN); DCL (DCBPTR, GACBPTR, DECBPTR) POINTER, CUND BIT(1). MIMSG CHAR(30) VARYING. R FIXED BIN(31); % INCLUDE DCLS(GRASPINC); GUPEN#: GAAP#; GWRITE#: GWAIT#: GLINEND#: GAQ#: GREAD#: GERASE#: GDAP#: GCLOSE#: GCENT#: (DC BPTR, 'DISP', 'IOE', 'BASIC', 1, 0, R); CALL GOPEN CALL GAAP (GACBPTR, DCBPTR, R); LOOP : CALL GWRITE (DECBPTR, 'EA', DCBPTR, GLINENO(1) | | "READY "| | GCENT.1.R): CALL GWAIT (DECBPTR,R); CALL GAG (GACBPTR . 'W', COND . 1 . R); CALL GREAD (DECBPTR, 'M', DCBPTR, MIMSG, 1, R); CALL GWAIT (DECBPTR,R); (MIMSG) (SKIP,A); PUT EDIT IF MIMSG-= 'STOP' THEN GO TO LOOP: CALL GERASE (DECBPTR, ", DCBPTR, 1, R); CALL GWAIT (DECBPTR,R); CALL GDAP (GACBPTR.R); CALL GCLOSE (DCBPTR); END: /* //LKED.SYSLIB DD DISP=SHR 11 DD DSN=AAL IB, DISP=SHR, UNIT=PACK. VOL=(PRIVATE, RETAIN, SER=DP5010) 11 //GO.DISP DD UNIT=DISPLAY 1234567890123456789012345678901234567890123456789012345678901234567890123~567890

Figure 5.

2.1.3.2

- Se for Arrent
- 11 120

01/12/

GEASE_STANDARD_INCLUDE_SET : AAINCIGRASPINCI

0000	10000		≜ 1 1 1 1			252222		222	333							CCC	E / /			1 77.	
1224		0122664	L	10	1224		122	323	222	0044	++++	****	700	22:	2222	277	200	224	66000	1100	11111110
7533	122103	20173450	0102	212 212	1234:	201031	114.	242	DIE	1401	123	120	167	UL	(14)	618	301	234	20/0	1201.	14261699
<i>A</i> .		000	(GA)	11	#+ GAL	2#+ GUL	.051	C # #	GUA	1 P # 1	+GE	KAS	2.8.4	GL	INEN	10#1	GNC	PHY			00000000
		101	GIVUE	11	1540	DUPENI	1.01	KEA	U# ,	10 UF		4+6	WAI	1#1	GWR	TIF	#)	LHA	K :		00000010
1		UCL C	GUEN	41	4 CH1	An i															00000020
		UCL (Untl	- 4	CHAI	×:								_							00000030
2		GAPPA	-	=	JCL	GAAP	EN	TRY	(P	101	ALE	x , P	UIN	ITE	۲.						00000040
									F	IXE	ED E	BIN	(31	.))	';						00000050
14		', AL #			• DCL	GAUE	NTI	ΡY	(PL	THI	TEP	,CH	AR (1)	, BIT	(1)					00000000
									61	IXEL) HI	146	311	+FI	IXED	919	N(3	1))	• ;		0000007;
4.		SCLUSE	# =		1 DCL	GCLUS	SE I	ENT	RY	TPL	JIN	TER) ';	5							00000080
ÿ		SONP4	-	=	* DCL	GDAP	EN	TRY	(P	POIN	NTEP	R,F	IXF	:0 1	SIN(311	11:	5			000000000
1		GERASLI	4 =	2	+ DCL	GERA!	SE I	ENT	RY	(PL	JIN.	TER	+CH	AR	(1)V	AF,	Pul	NTE	R.		00000100
										F	IXE	D B	IN(31),FI	XED	91	N(3	111	1 🗧	00000110
3		GLINERO	Gin =	=	+ DCL	GL INF	NO	EN	TRY	1 (F	FIXI	ED.	BIN	1(3	1))						00000120
								RE	TUP	RNS	(C)	HAR	(1)) •	;						00000130
Z,		GNC P#			. DCL	GNCP	EN	TRY	(F	1109	NTE	R)	RET	UR	NS (FIX	ED	BIN	1(31)	1111	00000140
3		GNUNIT	SH =	=	+ DCL	GNUN	ITS	EN	TRY	(C)	HAR	(8))								00000150
								RE	TUP	RNS	(FI)	XED	81	NC	31)]	1 :					00000150
×.		GCPENA		=	• DCL	GUPEN	I EI	NTR	Y (PU	INT	ER,	CHA	AR (8).0	HAH	(3)	VAF	2.		00000170
										CH	AR	5),	FIX	KED	BIN	1(31	.)				00000180
										FID	XED	BI	11(3	311) ' ;						00000190
光		GREAD#	:	E.	. DCL	GREAL	I E	NTR	Y (PU	INT	ER,	CHA	AK (31 V A	AR, P	ID	NTER	< •		00000200
										CHI	ARC	*) V	AR .	FI	XED	BIN	1(3)	1).			00000210
										FI	XED	9 I	N(3	31)) * :						00000220
×		GUNITE	:	-	* DCL	GUNI	E E	NTR	YLF	109	NTE	R)	RET	TUR	NSIF	TXE	0 1	3IN(31)	1 * :	00000230
2		GHAITH	2	=	. DCL	GWAI	E	NTR	Y	(PO)	INT	ER,	FIX	KED	BIN	1(31	.))'	•			00000240
У.		GWRITE	# =	-	1 DCL	GWRI	TE -	ENT	RY	(PI	OIN	TER	+CH	AR	(3)	AR,	PUI	INTE	Ρ,		0000006
										CH	HAR	(*)	VAR	t,F	IXED) 81	N(3	31),	,		00000200
										F	IXE	D B	INC	31))';						00000270
2		GCLINT#	-	Ξ	. DCL	GCEN	гс	HAR	(1)) S	TAT	10	INI	ITC						•	00000230
¥		GALL#		1	GAA	P#;GA	1#:	GCL	OSE	E# :(GDA	P#;	GEN	AS	E#;0	GLIN	ENO	J# :			00000290
					GIAC	P#;GNI	JNI	TS#	;GC	JPEI	N#:	GRE	ADA	¥;G	UNI	₩ ;G	WA	IT#	;		00000300
					GWH	ITE# :	SCE	NTA													00000310
																				-	

Figure 6.

DISPLAY : PROC OPTIONSEMAINEL

SHURCE LISTING.

STMT	LEVEL NEST		
1		DISPLAY	: PPOC OPTIONS(MAIN);
2	1		OCL (DCRPTR, GACBPTR, DECUPTR) POINTER,
			CUNIT BIT(1).
			MIMSG CHAF(3C) VARYING.
			R FIVED AIN(31):
3	1		OCL GOPEN ENTRY (POINTER . CHAR (8) . CHAR (3) VAR.
	-		CHAR(5) EIXED BIN(3)
			ETYEN RINEALDS :
4	1		ACL CAAD LATRY (PHINTH 2DAINTER.
	•		ETYED HIM/4111 +
5	1		THE CHPITE SHELV / DITENTED CHAP/21VAD DUINTED
	•		THAD ANAD, EIVED ATMATIN
			START DIVISION STATES
6	r		OCL CANEL ENTER IDDINTED SINGSING 4
.7	1		THE BRALL FAILER FOUND FILLS STREATLY -
(1		DEL GEINCHT FRIKT (FIALZ DI MIDITI
	,		TERMENS LUDANALIE :
0	1		DUE DAW ENTER (PDINIEK (UNARTI) (DITTI) (
()	1		TIACU DINVOLIJETACH DINVOLIJETA
7	1		OUL SKEAD CRAKT LYDINIERIGTAKIDIVAKIPUINIEKI Charlendad etven dimiteki
			CINED DIAL (1)
10	,		CIACH DINACE (THE FORTHER CHARTER DOTATE)
10	1		OLL GERASE CALLY TEMPHERICARTITYARTEMICAT
			FIXED BIN(SI)(FIXED DIN(SI)) ;
11	1		SOL GOAP PRIKY (POISIER PPIXED DIN(SII) ;
12	1		DEL GELUSE ENIKY (PUINTER) ;
13	1		DEL GEENT CHAP(1) STATIC INIT(* *) ;
14	1		LALL GOPER (DUSPIR, DISP', TOE', BASIC', L,O,R);
15	1		CALL SAAP (GACSPTR,DUBPTR,R);
16	I	LUDP :	CALL GARITE (DECEPTR, YEAY, DCHPTR,
			GLINENOLILII'READY 'LIGCENTALAR);
17	1		CALL GWAIT (DEC3PTR,R);
18	1		CALL GAC (GACBPTR, *W*, COND, 1, K);
19	1		CALL GREAD (DELOPTR, "A", DUSPTR, MIMSG, 1, R);
SC	1		GALL GWAIT (DECEPTR, KIT
51	1		PUT EDIT (PIMSG) (SKIP.4);
22	1		IF MIMSGHE'STOP' THEN GO TO LOOP;
24	1		CALL GERASE (DECBPTP, ", DCBPTR, 1, R):
25	1		CALL GHAIT (DECHPTRINT:
20	1		CALL GUAP (GAC 3PTR-P);
27	1		CALL GOLOSE (DUBPTH):
28	1		END:

Figure 7.

.

(4) At the statement labelled LOOP, the writemode argument to the GWRITE routine is coded as 'EA' to indicate that a prewrite screen erase is to occur, followed by a line-addressed output operation. The GLINENO routine is used to supply the proper line code for line 1 of the display. The variable GCENT is used to supply the character code for the START symbol. The line will appear on the display as

READY 🕨

with the cursor immediately to the right of the START symbol.

- (5) The wait mode of the GAQ routine is used to wait for the appearance of an attention at the device.
- (6) The manual input mode of the GREAD routine is used to cause the characters entered by the operator to be transferred to the string variable MIMSG. When the call is made to GWAIT, the current length of the varying string MIMSG is set to the number of characters read from the device. The unit number specified in the call to GREAD is 1 (as it is in the calls to GWRITE and GAQ) because only one display is being serviced.
- (7) When the program is complete, a call is made to GERASE to erase the screen, GDAP is called to terminate the processing of attentions by the control program, and the graphics DCB is closed by a call to GCLOSE.
- (8) In the linkedit step of the job, a DD statement defining the library containing the GRASP routines must be concatenated to the SYSLIB DD statement in the PL1LFCLG catalogued procedure.

(9) In the go step of the job, a DD statement is included defining the 2260 device. As coded in the example, an available 2260 will be allocated to the program. If more than one 2260 is desired, the following DD statement may be used:

//GO.DISP DD UNIT=(2260-1,n)

where "n" is a decimal integer indicating the number of 2260's desired.

LIST OF REFERENCES

- 1. IBM Systems Reference Library, Operator Manual, 2260 Display Station, 2848 Display Control, 1053 Printer, Form C20-1688.
- 2. IBM Systems Reference Library, System/360 Operating System, Graphic Programming Services for 2260 Display Station (Local Attachment), Form C27-6912.
- 3. IBM Systems Reference Library, System/360 Component Description, 2260 Display Station, 2848 Display Control, Form A27-2700.

Security Classification			
DOCUMENT CONT (Security classification of title, body of abstract and indexing of	ROL DATA - R	SD ntered when the c	overall report is classified)
1. ORIGINATING ACTIVITY (Corporate author)		28. REPORT SE	CURITY CLASSIFICATION
The MITRE Corporation		UN	ICLASSIFIED
Bedford, Massachusetts		2b. GROUP	
3. REPORT TITLE GRASP A PL/I COMPATIBLE	GRAPHICS SU	BROUTINE	PACKAGE FOR THE
IBM 2260 DISPLAY STATION (L	OCAL ATTAC	HMENT)	
VOLUME I - INTRODUCTION AN	ND USER'S M	ANUAL	
4. DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates) N/A			
5. AUTHOR(S) (First name, middle Initial, last name)			
Richard H. Bullen, Jr.			
6. REPORT DATE MAY 1970	78. TOTAL NO. 0 31	F PAGES	76. NO. OF REFS
88. CONTRACT OR GRANT NO.	98. ORIGINATOR	REPORT NUME	3ER(\$)
F19(628)-68-C-0365	ESD-TR-7	0-124, Vol.	. I
512A			
с.	9b. OTHER REPO this report)	RT NO(S) (Any of	het numbers that may be assigned
d.	MTR-	1768, Vol.	I
10. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT This document has been	approved for	public rele	ease and sale;
its distribution is unlimited.			
11. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	12. SPONSORING	MILITARY ACTI	Directorate of
N/A	Systems De Systems Div	sign and De vision, AF	evelopment, Electronic Systems Command, L.G.
	Hanscom Fi	ield, Bedfor	rd, Massachusetts
GRASP is a set of PL/I compatible s support for the IBM 2260 Display Station in a 2260 directly to a System/360 CPU chan subroutines are coded in OS/360 Assemble the PL/I programmer to manipulate the 22 available to the Assembler Language progrunder OS/360 (with restrictions as noted in All errors, except those which normally reare returned to the user via subroutine pa under the MFT configuration of OS/360. Volume I of this document gives an of the GRASP routines. Volume II gives deta	ubroutines wh h local attachm hel via the IBl or Language at 60 as an I/O cammer using h the Introduc esult in OS/36 trameters. G overview of th hiled program	nich provide nent; i.e., M 2848 Disp nd are reen device in th the Graphi tion to Volu 0 abnorma RASP is de e 2260 and specificati	e programming the attachment of play Control. The atrant. They permit is same manner is Access Method ume I of this document). I ends (ABENDS), esigned to operate an introduction to ons.

DD FORM 1473

Security Classification

Q

		LIN	KA	LIN	K B	LIN	LINKC	
	KEY WORDS	ROLE	WT	ROLE	WT	ROLE	WT	
					. da	•		
and a state of the		and a						
			-					
Kalencar	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		_					
	COMPUTER DISPLAYS							
		-						
	PROGRAMMING IBM 2260							
	/							
	PL/I COMPATIBLE GRAPHICS SUBROUTINES							
		- 145 •						
	PL/I GRAPHICS ACCESS METHOD							
		1						
							l	
	,							
			-	1	18			
			-		1 S.			
					1			
		. :			a ing	1		
					1. 1.			
			1.1		14			
		•			1 - S.	1. 1		
			1.1.1					
				1. C	4			
			1.00		. К ¹	1.10		
•						1		
			1 ·		1.19.00			
			1.		1.50	1.1	1	
		1.0	tar.			1		
		0.5		1	1			
		1. 1.	mire a	1.1	17 3			
			1		[-	

I.